Legal and Governance

N\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR REGENERATION

Date: Wednesday 23rd February, 2022
Time: 11.30 am
Venue: Council Chamber

AGENDA

1. Tees Valley Combined Authority Enhanced Bus Partnership 3-42
Plan and Scheme

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Tuesday 15 February 2022

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors E Polano (Chair), ,
Assistance in accessing information

Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information
please contact Susie Blood, 01642 729645, susie_blood@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda Item 1

I\/\iddles%gh

moving forward

Report of:

Clir Eric Polano: Executive Member for Regeneration
Richard Horniman: Director of Regeneration

Submitted to:

Executive Member for Regeneration- 23 February 2022

Subject:

Scheme

Tees Valley Combined Authority Enhanced Bus Partnership Plan and

Proposed decision(s)

It is recommended that Executive:

a) approve the proposals to join an enhanced regional bus partnership to improve bus

service provision.

Report for: | Key Confidential: Is the report urgent??!
decision:

Information | Yes n/a n/a

and approval

Contribution to delivery of the 2020-23 Strategic Plan

People Place Business

The proposals will assist by
working toward improving the
bus offer to the public, aiming
to improve accessibility,
reliability and affordability to
services

The proposals will focus
upon improving accessibility
across the Borough/region,
meaning people are able to
travel reliably

By improving accessibility,
the Council will be improving
business opportunities for
further inward investment.

Ward(s) affected

All Wards will be impacted upon the partnership

! Remove for non-Executive reports

Page 3




What is the purpose of this report?

1) The purpose of this report is approve that Middlesbrough Council become party to
the ‘shell’ Enhanced Partnership agreement, noting that there are no direct
obligations at this stage.

Why does this report require a Member decision?

2) Entering in to a regional bus partnership is strongly encouraged by the Department
for Transport (DfT) as part of the devolution arrangements with Tees Valley
Combined Authority (TVCA). Having a formal arrangement will be looked upon
favourably for future funding opportunities, so having full sign up from the Council is
imperative.

3) The partnership also affects Council strategy and policy. The partnership requires
close working with TVCA, neighbouring authorities, and bus operators to achieve a
better service provision for the travelling public. This strategic approach will help to
identify key improvements to be implemented, and assist in attracting funding to the
region.

Report Background
What decision(s) are being asked for?
4) Itis recommended that Executive:

a) approve the proposals to join an enhanced regional bus partnership to improve
bus service provision.

Why is this being recommended?

5) This is being recommended as it is a requirement from the DfT that all Authorities
are signed up to an adopted Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) and Enhanced
Partnership (EP) in order to be eligible for future funding opportunities to support
bus travel.

6) The content of the BSIP/EP is aligned with a number of Council objectives, namely:

a) improving Road Safety for all road users, and reduce accidents;

b) improving accessibility for all; particularly those with disabilities and transport
access limitations;

c) supporting the local economy; improving accessibility to local retail, leisure
and services by improving accessibility;

d) seducing congestion by encouraging alternate modes of travel than the
private car will improve air quality, reduce noise and help to improve the local
environment;

e) improving public health by reducing pollution; buses emit fewer pollutants
than the equivalent number of cars required to transport the same number of
people;

f) ensuring the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and
other traffic on Middlesbrough Councils Highway Network; and,

g) acting as a statement of intent to echo Governments ambitions to
significantly increase the uptake of sustainable transport.

Page 4 2



7) The Council has identified a problem with localised congestion; predominant
causation factor is the private car. Building roads and making improvements for
cars will simply induce further demand for vehicles, and further compound this
issue. By developing a suite of alternate mode infrastructure, the Council will be
assisting in reducing this issue.

8) This transformational proposal will help to set the tone as to what is achievable,
providing a statement of intent for the Council to support alternate modes of travel.
This is in line with the Councils ambitious proposals to mitigate the impact of
economic and housing regeneration and growth, and supports both the Council’s
Town Centre and Green Strategy.

Background Information

9) Since the first national lockdown in March 2020, the Government has provided
financial support to the bus sector to ensure the continued provision of services
despite significantly reduced passenger numbers. This recovery funding was
intended to support the bus sector’s return to financial sustainability.

10)In March 2021, the Government published Bus Back Better: national bus strategy
for England. The strategy sets out the long-term vision and opportunity to deliver
better bus services for passengers across England.

11)It should be noted that TVCA, the five Tees Valley local authorities and the Tees
Valley bus operators have an long-standing history of collaboration and the work
being progressed in response to the national bus strategy builds upon this.

12)There are two requirements that must be met, to be eligible for potential future
funding to support bus provision:

e submit a Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) by 31 October 2021. The
BSIP should set out a vision for delivering a step-change in bus services. A
local public and wider stakeholder engagement process was undertaken
during the development of the BSIP to inform priorities and this targeted both
users and potential users of bus services. The Tees Valley BSIP was
published in accordance with the deadline and can be viewed at Tees Valley
BSIP;

e implement an Enhanced Partnership (EP), which is a statutory agreement
between TVCA, the five Tees Valley local authorities and the Tees Valley
bus operators. The EP is made up of two parts: the EP plan, which mirrors
the content of the BSIP; and the EP Scheme where the detailed
requirements and actions for services and infrastructure in the area are set
out specifically.

13)The original deadline was for submission of the final scheme to the Government by
the 31 March 2022, but this has recently been amended to submission of a draft
scheme by the end of April 2022. However, given how advanced Tees Valley
already is in the statutory process, the intention is to continue to work to the original
deadline.

14)The BSIP and EP have been structured around a five-point delivery plan:
1) decarbonisation — one of the first regions in the UK to have an entirely zero
emission local bus fleet;
2) fares — simpler fares and targeted promotions to drive passenger growth;

Page 5 3



3) customer experience — putting the needs of customers at the heart of
service delivery and improving information provision with one brand identity;

4) infrastructure — new infrastructure investment to prioritise bus on core
corridors and improve passenger experience; and

5) network — a collaborative approach focused on core corridors and
integration with the Tees Flex on-demand bus service.

15)1t should be noted that the delivery of much of this five-point plan is dependent on
securing revenue funding from government and it is understood that details of the
indicative funding to support delivery of the BSIP will be provided by February 2022.
The government has made it clear that should an area not implement an EP
scheme, then future funding to both the Tees Valley Combined Authority, as local
transport authority, and local bus operators could potentially be withheld.

16)As part of Spending Review 2021, it was announced that TVCA had an indicative
capital allocation of £310m from the City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement
(CRSTYS) for the five-year period from 2022/23 to 2026/27. The capital funding
needed to deliver the infrastructure priority has been included in the CRSTS
programme business case.

17)It is important to understand that TVCA is party to the agreement as the local,
strategic transport authority and the five Tees Valley local authorities in their
capacity as local highway authorities. An officer governance structure has been
established, involving TVCA, the five Tees Valley local authorities and bus
operators, to oversee the work and updates have been provided to the TVCA
Transport Committee.

18)Coronavirus continues to impact on bus services in terms of patronage, service
delivery and operational timetabling. These impacts coupled with uncertainty
around the potential funding to support the delivery of the BSIP has made the
process more challenging. It therefore needs to be recognised that the BSIP and
EP need to be fluid and will be adapted as there is more certainty, particularly
around the funding allocation.

19)In recognition of this challenge, the EP is in the form of a ‘shell’ agreement, which
sets out the high-level priorities. There are no direct obligations on TVCA, the Tees
Valley local authorities or bus operators at this stage. The EP Plan includes a
bespoke variation mechanism, which enables further detail to be added at the
appropriate point in time.

20)Any scheme that impacts on the local highway will therefore be subject to
confirmation of funding and satisfactory completion of the necessary statutory
processes.
Other potential decisions and why these have not been recommended

21)The other potential decisions that have not been recommended include:

a) Doing nothing - this is not recommended, as it will not allow the Council to
realise the benefits outlined within the report. This will have an impact upon the
Councils strategic objectives such as the recently approved Local
Implementation Plan and Town Centre Strategy.

Page 6 4



b) Re-assessing the partnership plan- this is not recommended, as the proposals
have been compiled following working groups between all partied; facilitated by
external consultants who are experienced in collating BSIPs in other established
areas.

c) Accept the proposals and deliver as anticipated. It is recommended that the
proposals are approved as presented in order to realise the benefits of:

Improved Road Safety

Improved accessibility

Supporting the local economy.

Reducing congestion and improving local environment

Improving public health by reducing pollution

e Ensure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and
other traffic on Middlesbrough Councils Highway Network

e Act as a statement of intent to echo Governments ambitions to significantly

increase the uptake of sustainable transport

Impact(s) of recommended decision(s)
Legal

22) There are no known legal implications surrounding the approval of this decision.
The partnership formalises working arrangements and sets goals to achieve
improved service provision, and provides a basis to increase the likelihood of
gaining funding to deliver improvements.

23)Individual elements will be assessed for legal implications as the proceed, but are
likely to surround Traffic Regulation Orders and funding agreements.

Financial
24)There are no financial implications to Middlesbrough Council as part of signing up to
this partnership. This simply provides a formal partnership setting, which identifies
aims and objectives, and increases the likelihood of gaining funding to make the
service improvements.

Policy Framework

25)The decisions within this report align with the Councils policy framework, and will
not require alterations to this.

Equality and Diversity
26) The proposals within this report will make bus travel a more viable option to the
residents of the town. This will comply with Access For All legislation; ensuring that
residents with disabilities are not disproportionately / negatively impacted upon.
27)Bus travel is particularly vital to those with disabilities; therefore the proposals to

enhance the bus service will be particularly important in supporting those who rely
on public transport.

Page 7 5



28)The Council will follow all guidelines and consult proposals with the relevant
disability groups in order to ensure that it is fulfilling its statutory and moral
obligations

29)It is not anticipated that any other protected groups will be impacted upon
negatively as a result of progressing with proposals.

Risk
30)The key risks associated with not approving this report surround not being in a
prepared position to progress with delivering the requirements, and being looked
upon less favourably that other areas that have signed up to a partnership. This
would put the Council at a disadvantage when making funding applications in
comparison to other areas.
31)Potential to be excluded from Combined Authority collective bids for funding, due to
non-partnership sign up.
Actions to be taken to implement the decision(s)

32)If approved, the Council will be able to proceed with progressing and delivering
proposals crucial to supporting the provision of the bus service and network.

Appendices
33)The document in Appendix 1 shows the detailed partnership plan and proposals
Background papers

34) N/A

Contact: Craig Cowley

Email: craig_cowley@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 8 6



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



TEES VALLEY
ENHANCED PARTNERSHIP PLAN AND SCHEME

FINAL DRAFT

10t December 2021

Page 11



ENHANCED PARTNERSHIP (EP) PLAN AND SCHEME - CONTENTS

Part 1 — EP Plan
Part 2 — EP Scheme
Annex A — Schedule of Local Transport Authority (LTA) Facilities

Annex B — Schedule of LTA Measures

2
Page 12



PART 1 - EP PLAN

THE TEES VALLEY ENHANCED PARTNERSHIP PLAN FOR BUSES IS MADE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 138G(1) OF THE TRANSPORT ACT 2000 BY THE
TEES VALLEY COMBINED AUTHORITY (TVCA).

Definitions

Affected Operator — When agreeing a bespoke variation to the Scheme, an affected
operator is considered to be one where at least one of their currently registered local
bus services would use the proposed facility, or be impacted by the proposed
measure.

Bus Gate — short stretch of road carriageway that is restricted to use by buses and
(where specified) taxis and other authorised vehicles as indicated on appropriate
signage on the approach.

Bus Lane — signposted lane, designated for use by registered local bus services and
(where specified) taxis and other authorised vehicles, at the times also indicated by
signage.

CCTV - closed circuit television system, whereby static or mobile cameras are used
to record offences or for surveillance and safety and security purposes.

EP Scheme Area — area to which this EP Scheme document applies.

Euro VI equivalent standards — Euro VI diesel bus or a bus with Clean Vehicle
Retrofit Accreditation Scheme (CVRAS) approved technology retrofitted to a diesel
bus to reduce nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matter (PM) emissions and
achieve Euro VI equivalent standards.

Facilities — physical assets that are provided at specific locations along particular
routes (or parts of routes) within the EP scheme area or new and improved bus
priority measures. This is deemed for such purposes by section 138D(1) of the
Transport Act 2000.

Measures — improvements with the aim of:

e increasing the use of local bus services serving the routes to which the
measures relate or ending or reducing a decline in their use; or
e improving the quality of local bus services.
Local Authorities — prescribed under section 23 of the Local Government Act 2003.

Local Highway Authorities — Local Authority with responsibility for the maintenance
of highway infrastructure in its local authority area. In the case of this EP Scheme,
this means Darlington Borough Council, Hartlepool Borough Council, Middlesbrough
Council, Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council and Stockton-on-Tees Borough
Council.

3
Page 13



Local Transport Authority (LTA) — the Tees Valley Combined Authority.

Multi-Operator Ticketing — common fares and/or ticketing products applied and
accepted by multiple operators.

Network Stability Protocol — specified dates throughout the year, agreed between
TVCA and bus operators, on which local bus service changes take place.

Real Time Information — using technology to track the location of buses in real time.
Information is transmitted to bus stops or devices to indicate to passengers the
predicted arrival time at a particular point.

Registered Local Bus Service — as set out in Section 2 of the Transport Act 1985.

Road and Street Works Permit — permit issued by Local Highway Authorities to any
organisation that wishes to undertake street works, with the aim of managing works
on the public highway. Local authorities have powers to operate permit schemes
under Part 3 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 and The Traffic Management
Permit Scheme (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.

TRO - Traffic Regulation Order, made under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
or any other enactment regulating the use of roads or other places.

TVCA Enhanced Partnership Plan — document made pursuant to section 138A of
the Transport Act 2000 and which is required to be in place for an EP Scheme to be
made.

Zero Emission Vehicle — vehicle that emits no pollutants at its tailpipe.

Introduction

Tees Valley Combined Authority (TVCA) was formed in 2016 and prior to this there
was no strategic body with statutory responsibility for transport at a regional level.
This meant the region was at a comparative disadvantage to many other combined
authority areas who had invested in their regional transport systems for many years.

The Tees Valley is now on the cusp of transformative economic growth that will have
a national impact and we need to deliver a world-class transport system at pace to
make this ambition a reality. A fundamental component of this is the shared
commitment with operators to transform the Tees Valley bus services and grow
passenger numbers.

Transforming bus services

The detailed narrative set out within the Tees Valley Enhanced Partnership Plan for
Buses (“The Plan”) outlines, in as much detail as currently practicable, the collective
actions to transform buses across the Tees Valley over the five-year period from
2022/23 to 2026/27.

The EP Plan and scheme are closely aligned with the Tees Valley Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP).

4
Page 14



Enhanced Partnership Scheme
A clear vision of the improvements to

bus services that the Enhanced

Partnership isaiming to deliver,

mirraring the Bus Service
. Improvement Plan.
Bus Service

Improvement Plan

Enhanced Partnership Plan
3 ent that

Sets out a vision for delivering

a step-change in bus services ' thatr

Working in close collaboration with stakeholders including the Tees Valley local
authorities, local bus operators, neighbouring authorities, statutory consultees,
businesses and the public (both bus users and non-users), TVCA has developed a
Plan that can be transformational with the right level of funding.

It should be noted that, at the time of making the Plan, measures and facilities
included are subject to award of suitable funding from Government, and completion
of relevant statutory processes, and will be detailed in the Scheme through bespoke
variation arrangements once agreed.

The Tees Valley Strategic Transport Plan (STP) 2020 — 2030 was developed
following extensive public consultation and stakeholder engagement. The STP
includes a package of required outcomes, two of which are to:

e deliver and maintain a frequent, high quality, reliable and integrated public
transport network; and
e develop and improve transport interchanges, ticketing options and information
to provide a seamless integrated experience for the travelling public.
This Plan is pivotal to the delivery of these outcomes.
Five Key Priorities

The Plan has been developed following detailed work identifying the current state of
bus provision and areas for improvement. It sets out how we will stabilise and then
grow bus patronage following the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic. The actions
are structured around five key priorities:

e Decarbonisation — one of the first regions in the UK to have an entirely zero
emission local bus fleet;

o Fares — simpler fares and targeted promotions to drive growth;

5
Page 15



e Customer Experience — putting the needs of customers at the heart of
service delivery and improving information provision with one brand identity;

¢ Infrastructure — new infrastructure investment to prioritise bus on core
corridors and improve customer experience; and

e Network — a collaborative approach focused on core corridors and integration
with the Tees Flex on-demand bus service. This will provide greater network
stability, ensure services respond to changing demand, better connect more
people to opportunity and facilitate modal shift.

Supporting Policies

The Tees Valley Strategic Economic Plan sets out our aspiration to drive the
transition to a high-value, low-carbon, diversified and inclusive economy. The Tees
Valley Local Industrial Strateqy identifies an overarching ambition that Tees Valley
will be a global leader in clean energy, low carbon and hydrogen. The area will
achieve a net zero carbon industrial cluster by 2040, providing good jobs with long
term prospects that local people can access.

Teesworks, which incorporates the UK’s largest Freeport, is focused on offshore
wind, clean energy, advanced manufacturing and the chemicals and process
sectors. This, alongside other Freeport sites in each of the five boroughs, is the
cornerstone of the economic transformation of the Tees Valley and will generate an
additional 41,780 net direct jobs and £3.2bn of GVA to the region.

The Tees Valley Strategic Transport Plan (STP) 2020 — 2030 sets out how we will
deliver a world-class transport system and provides the framework for transport
investment.

Competition Test

The Tees Valley Combined Authority has undertaken an assessment of the impacts
of the EP Plan and Scheme to be made on 1 April 2022 on competition and believes
it will not or is unlikely to have a significantly adverse effect on competition, for the
purposes of Part 1 of Schedule 10 of the Transport Act 2000.

There are currently no proposed changes to services or impacts on operators that
could be considered disproportionate to the expected benefits. As the funding is yet
to be defined, most interventions are only set out in the Scheme at a headline level
with the detail to be agreed through bespoke variations.

Extent of the Enhanced Partnership

In response to the Government requirement, TVCA has published a notice of intent
to prepare an Enhanced Partnership Plan and accompanying Enhanced Partnership
Scheme, in accordance with section 138F of the Transport Act 2000.

The Enhanced Partnership Plan and Scheme will make a substantial contribution to
the implementation of The Tees Valley Bus Service Improvement Plan.

6
Page 16



It will bring benefits to passengers using local bus services across the Tees Valley
by improving the quality and efficiency of the public transport network. It will support
the efficient use of the road network and the delivery of sustainable growth, limiting
the impacts of additional traffic congestion and air pollution.

Both the Enhanced Partnership Plan and Enhanced Partnership Scheme are
proposed to cover the entirety of the Tees Valley Combined Authority area, which
includes Darlington Borough Council, Hartlepool Borough Council, Middlesbrough
Council, Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council and Stockton-on-Tees Borough
Council. The Tees Valley covers around 3,300 square miles and has a population of
approximately 670,000. Neighbouring Authorities who have been engaged during the
production of this BSIP include North Yorkshire County Council (immediately to the
south) and the North East Combined Authority (immediately to the north). They will
continue to be engaged during implementation of the EP Scheme to ensure
consistency for cross boundary issues.

The map below identifies the geographical area covered by the Enhanced
Partnership Plan and Enhanced Partnership Scheme and the relationship with
neighbouring authorities.

Stocktan-On-Tees Middlesbrough
E

rem )

ston
/ (1]
/

| Darlington [ 2104}

TWCA National Bus Strategy|
Support

All operators running bus services in the Tees Valley have been invited to participate
in the preparation of the Enhanced Partnership Plan and accompanying Scheme.
The Scheme will come into effect from the 1 April 2022.

7
Page 17



The Plan will have no specific end date but is initially intended to cover the five-year
period from 2022/23 to 2026/27. The intention is to review progress on a quarterly
basis and prepare publicly accessible update reports on a routine basis.

Bus network overview

The Tees Valley Enhanced Partnership Plan can be transformational with the right
level of funding and the improvements will:

e deliver a step change in bus provision for current and new bus users; and
e provide a high-quality alternative to car travel.
Operators and the market

The two main bus operators in the Tees Valley are Arriva and Stagecoach, with a
smaller number of services operated by Go North East and independent operators.

Market share based on the number of operational local bus service vehicles is
dominated by Arriva (63.3%) and Stagecoach (28.8%), with Go North East holding
just over 3%.

Operator | Stagecoach | Arriva Go Coatham | Hodgsons | Paul's | Scarlet
North Coaches Travel Band
East

Fleet 90 198 10 1 11 1 2

Size?

Market 28.8% | 63.3% | 3.2% 0.3% 35% | 03% | 0.6%

Share %*

A Fleet Size — Based on weekday Peak Vehicle Requirement (PVR) on local bus services

*Market Share — Based on number of operational local bus service vehicles

Some services are also operated by smaller independent operators: Coatham
Coaches in Redcar & Cleveland; Hodgsons in Darlington; Paul’s Travel in
Hartlepool; and Scarlet Band in Darlington. These services together represent
around 5% of the operational market.

There is limited operator competition in Darlington and Redcar & Cleveland where
services are almost operated exclusively by Arriva. In Hartlepool, services are
operated almost exclusively by Stagecoach. In Middlesbrough and Stockton-on-
Tees, both Arriva and Stagecoach operate. This has an influence on the types of
ticket available in each area.

Fleet

The total vehicle fleet for all operators across the Plan area has an operational Peak
Vehicle Requirement (PVR) of approximately 313 vehicles. The spare level is
estimated at 13%, which means the total fleet is circa 350.

The profile of the fleet is dominated by Euro V vehicles (two-thirds) with smaller
proportions of newer and older vehicles (see figure below).

8
Page 18



Tees Valley Fleet composition

Euro VII .Euro Vv Euro IV Euro lll

9%

TVCA area bus fleet composition

Factors affecting the local bus market

There are a number of factors which are likely to affect, or have the potential to
affect, the local bus market over the life of this Plan:

a long-term trend of declining bus patronage coupled with the impact of
Coronavirus impacting on revenue and driver/service availability;

specific locations and corridors on the Key Route Network (KRN) that are
already at capacity or will be over capacity by 2025, which is impacting on bus
service punctuality and the reliability of bus services;

a requirement to continue to decarbonise and modernise the bus fleet;

a requirement for bus services to connect new housing and job opportunities;
a requirement to connect rural areas of the Tees Valley and the challenge of
longer journey times when compared to the car;

a complex fares and ticketing system;

the cost and convenience of bus when compared to other modes; and

the cost of transport being a barrier for people in deprived communities and/or
low paid jobs, particularly when seeking work or starting new employment.

Patronage

There has been a decline in patronage on bus services in the Tees Valley over the
past ten years, which has been relatively consistent across all local authority areas.
Overall, patronage in 2019/20 (pre-Coronavirus pandemic) was around 70% of that
observed in 2009/10, as shown in the graph below.

9
Page 19



Patronage Trends for TVCA Districts

11

1.0
1.0
0.9
0.9
0.8
0.8
0.7
0.7
0.6
e 5 g g § g g & =z 2 g
g § B § g8 & & & &8 g ¢z
&= ~ N & ~ ~ N I I ~ =]
= Darlington w— Hartlepool Middlesbrough
=== Redcar & Cleveland e===== Stockton-on-Tees e Total

Tees Valley Patronage Trends — 2009/10 — 2019/20 (Source: DfT BUS 0109a - Passenger journeys on local bus services by
local authority, England)

In addition, analysis of passenger journeys per head of population has also been
undertaken, which shows a similar trend in that totals have fallen since 2009/10 to
66% of the baseline figure by 2019/20. This means that trip making by bus, as well
as overall passenger journeys, have both consistently declined over the last decade.

The onset of the Coronavirus pandemic had an unprecedented impact on national
bus patronage and all other forms of transport as a number of restrictions on
movement and social interaction were implemented by Government to protect public
health. The chart below illustrates the impact over time from March 2020 as
patronage immediately dropped to around 11% of normally observed levels.

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%

30%

% of Normal Patronage

20%

10%

0%

Use of bus (outside London) during the pandemic. DfT Statistics

10
Page 20



In the Tees Valley patronage levels as of early October 2021 were between 71% -
76% of the figure pre-pandemic. It is difficult to accurately project further passenger
growth by April 2022 when the Enhanced Partnership is implemented. Therefore,
there is a real risk that the residual impact continues into 2022/23, and the funding
ask reflects the need for continued recovery funding to ensure that the full bus
network is restored and then maintained. Should the recovery funding required to
sustain the current commercial network not be forthcoming, then this will have an
impact on what service improvements as set out in the BSIP can be delivered.

The bus network offer
Detailed analysis of the bus network has been undertaken to understand:

e the relative provision of bus services and levels of service (frequencies and
spread of operation by day);

e accessibility to a range of destinations including town centres, education,
employment and essential services; and

e the provision and adequacy of passenger infrastructure.

There are nine core bus corridors across the Tees Valley where there is significant
potential to grow passenger numbers. Aligned to the Government’s ambition for bus
priority schemes, there is a programme to deliver improvements to prioritise bus on
these corridors with a focus on two aspects:

e Measures to make it easier for buses to travel on these corridors, which could
be physical, for example junction improvements and the introduction of bus
lanes, or digital, for example giving buses priority at traffic signals; and

e Measures to improve passenger experience, for example improved waiting
facilities and combined real-time information underpinned by a passenger
charter setting out expected standards of delivery.

This investment package is a fundamental component of our five priorities and
further detail is included in the Scheme.

Passenger Information

Passenger information across the Tees Valley is currently available through several
channels. The operators provide service and ticketing information via their own
websites and apps, and the Connect Tees Valley website and social media channels
provide comprehensive travel information across a range of modes.

Printed timetables, and occasionally separate network maps, were generally
produced by the bus operators for their own services under their own branding, but
this ceased with the outbreak of the Coronavirus pandemic and it is doubtful if they
will be reinstated. The availability of timetable and mapping information from the bus
operators is now wholly online and can appear to be disjointed from a passenger
perspective because of the number of sources, styles and variations in presentation.

11
Page 21



The only multi-operator information is that produced under the Connect Tees Valley
brand. Printed bus stop timetables, which include all operators’ services, are
produced to a standard format and posted by the local authorities. Similarly, the
Connect Tees Valley website hosts a comprehensive Tees Valley bus map featuring
all services, along with timetables for all services and town centre bus stop location
and service allocation plans. Printed versions for individual areas are currently being
developed.

Travel Planning Information

The Let's Go Tees Valley service delivers a programme of behaviour change activity.
This includes personalised travel planning (PTP) targeted at employees within large
organisations, students and job seekers. There is also a programme of promotional,
incentivisation and marketing activity to encourage behaviour change. Traveline is
used by the Tees Valley as the journey planner.

Brand identity

TVCA is developing the concept of a new Tees Valley transport brand that can be
used for multiple purposes from general travel information to the promotion of new
infrastructure and campaigns. The objectives for this brand are:

e to provide timely travel information for users of public transport;
e to promote different ways to travel around the region and try to influence
consumer behaviour to make sustainable modes first choice; and
e to communicate the transport improvements and investments we are working
on around the region.
The brand will ensure a single source of accurate and consistent information
provision across the Tees Valley. It will be customer focused, ensuring that the
provision of information meets customer requirements and encourages different
travel behaviours. There will be digital functionality and a physical presence on the
ground, for example bus stops, cycling routes, etc. The brand will be developed to
enable integration with the Government’s new national bus brand.

Stakeholder views and feedback

The Plan is underpinned by several engagement exercises, which provide insight
into the attitudes, views and perceptions of bus users, non-users and stakeholder
organisations. There have been four main areas of research:

e public consultation undertaken during the preparation of the Tees Valley
Strategic Transport Plan and Bus Implementation Plan;

e asurvey of irregular and non-users of buses commissioned by Let’'s Go Tees
Valley;

e the various tranches of the Transport Focus Bus Passenger Surveys; and

e a more recent public and stakeholder engagement exercise during the
production of the BSIP in September 2021, to get an up-to-date view from
both bus users and non-users.

12
Page 22



The Strategic Transport Plan consultation asked respondents to indicate the level
of priority for each of the Strategic Transport Plan outcomes. The results revealed
that to ‘Deliver and maintain a frequent, high-quality, reliable and integrated bus
network’ was the highest priority for the Strategic Transport Plan with 84% of
respondents selecting this as either a very high or high priority. In addition, and very
relevant for bus was to ‘Improve accessibility and the equality of opportunity for more
remote and deprived communities’ with 81% of respondents selecting this as either a
very high or high priority.

This was supported by a further question that asked respondents which mode of
transport they would use if improvements were made to infrastructure and services.
The results indicated that usage on buses could increase by 21% with the
appropriate investment in infrastructure and services.

Key findings from the survey of irregular and non-users of buses was:

e Car was the most frequently used method of transport, with 74% travelling by
car as a driver at least once a week and 52% travelling by car as a passenger
at least once a week.

e Having an alternative means of transport was the top reason for not using
buses, or not using buses more, with 63% of respondents giving this as a
reason.

e 39% do not use a bus because they would have to use more than one to get
where they need to go, 33% because buses are too expensive, 32% because
they cannot get to the destination they need to by bus and 31% because
buses are not frequent enough.

e The top three things that would encourage respondents to use buses, or use
buses more, were cheaper fares (48%), more frequent services (43%) and
more reliable services (38%).

e The top factors that respondents thought are important in making a good bus
service were a bus that turns up on time (67%), fares that are affordable
(47%), a frequent service (43%) and buses to destinations they want to travel
to (42%).

e 59% of respondents would be willing to make a journey by bus that they
currently make by other means if there was a good bus service.

Transport Focus consult almost 50,000 passengers a year to produce the Bus
Passenger Survey. This measures passengers' satisfaction with their local bus
service for a representative sample of journeys. The latest set of results,
disaggregated to a Tees Valley level, were published in March 2020.

Passengers rated their satisfaction of a wide range of aspects including the bus stop,
waiting for the bus, on the bus, the outside of the bus, the bus driver as well as their
overall satisfaction with that bus journey and value for money.

13
Page 23



Bus Passenger Survey

Overall
journey

Journey time

Punctuality

Value for money

Bus driver
greeting/welcome

Interior cleanliness
and condition

Availability of seating
or space to stand

County England (excludes London) Local Transport Authority area Tees Valley Year 2019 “caution ~ bosed an 75.59 respanses
** result hidden as less than 75 responses

;I
(o)
]

The Transport Focus research shows that overall satisfaction scores for the bus
journey and other aspects in Tees Valley are higher than the national scores across
all areas.

However, there are aspects that scored lower, with punctuality and value for money
being the two lowest scores.

The most recent BSIP preparation research, which provided a relatively even
spread of responses across gender and age range, has noted a significant change in
attitude. The maijority of individual respondents’ (62%) were somewhat or very
dissatisfied with the bus services in Tees Valley, with just 15% of respondents
claiming to be satisfied or very satisfied. This is a significant shift from the last
Transport Focus survey carried out before the Coronavirus pandemic.

Of those who were not currently bus users, the most common reasons preventing
individual respondents from using the bus more/at all were:

e There are no services available in my area when | need to travel (32%)
e | have a car available and prefer to use that (31%)

e Buses do not go where | want to go (29%)

e Cost/Value for Money (26%)

Awareness of the current channels available for information was low, with 61.33% of
individual respondents saying they were not aware of the Connect Tees Valley
website and 75.68% not aware of the Let's Go Tees Valley website.

" Data rounded to nearest whole number for presentation

14
Page 24



When looking at possible improvements, a large number of individual respondents
said that more reliable (47%) and more direct (45%) services, as well as extra
services in the morning or later in the evening (43%) would encourage them to use
the bus more.

More frequent evening and weekend services were highlighted as a priority by many
individual respondents (43%), closely followed by more reliable buses (43%), real
time information tracking (39%) and more punctual buses (37%).

Overarching Conclusions — there are consistent themes across all four surveys,
which respondents say would facilitate greater use of buses in the Tees Valley.
These are:

3

— Reliability and punctuality: buses turning up
as expected and on time

H'Jf 4\\
W

— Frequency: provision of services on a more
regular basis

i

Qg
1

— Accessibility: services where people need to
travel

b <

— Availability: more extensive evening and
weekend services

— Fares and or tickets which provide better
value for money

ks

This intelligence has informed the development of the five priorities.

The most recent survey indicates that overall satisfaction with bus services has
dropped significantly. However, it must be recognised that this is a single survey and
is not a sustained trend. It is felt that the feedback could be driven by the impact of
the Coronavirus pandemic. There will therefore be a need for close monitoring of
passenger feedback as the priorities in this Plan are implemented.

15
Page 25



Enhanced Partnership Plan

Evidence from a range of sources, including local and national user and non-user
surveys, and stakeholder engagement, has identified a number of key barriers,
which if overcome, will lead to opportunities to restore and then grow the number of
journeys made by bus in the Tees Valley. This is illustrated below and demonstrates
how the five priorities will address these barriers:

Availability of
services where

people need to travel

Network - supporting the
emerging commercial
network in response to
changing demand created
through housing and
employment growth to
better connect people to
opportunity, and potential
expansion of the Tees Flex
on-demand bus service.

Cost & Value .

for Money

Fares - Simplified zonal |

ticketing with targeted

promotions on fares to |
encourage growth in key |
passenger groups, and a |

consistent local

enhancement to the English

National Concessionary !
Travel Scheme (ENCTS) \
across the Tees Valley. i

Punctuality &
Reliability

Infrastructure - Delivery of
improvements on nine
prioritised corridors covering
the majority of core bus
services, supported by
delivery of digital
infrastructure for improved
traffic management and
better customer

information.

Frequency of Services

Customer Experience -
More consistent information
provision to ensure that
customers are aware of all
their travel choices.

An improved network and
ticketing offer to encourage
bus use.

Future Ambition — the Five Priorities

The priorities for the Partnership are structured around a five-point action plan
summarised below:

E@] Tees Valley Partnership — 5 Point Plan

Accelerated fleet replacement
SUPPC 1 by the required
infrastructure

To be one of the first regions in
the UK to have an entirely
Zero Emission Local Bus fleet

1. decarbonisation

Simpler fares and targeted promotions
to drive growth

2, fares

£

Putting the needs of customers at
the heart of service delivery and
improving information provision
with one brand identity

3. customer
experience

New infrastructure investment
to prioritise bus on core
corridors and improve customer

i her developing the
experience ffic

ffic Management and

4, infrastructure

core corridors and integration with the
Tees Flex on-demand bus service. This
will ensure services respond to demand,
better connect more people to
opportunity and facilitate modal shift.

‘ A collaborative approach focused on

5. network

A shared commitment to transform Tees Valley bus services and grow passenger numbers

16
Page 26



Funding Arrangements
Securing the right level of funding is critical to ensure that:

e everyone, no matter where they live in the Tees Valley, is connected to
opportunity; and

e existing business can grow and the Tees Valley is able to continue attracting
new businesses and inward investment.

The Enhanced Partnership will draw on multiple funding sources to deliver the
desired outcomes of the Enhanced Partnership Scheme, including:

e Bus Service Improvement Plan funding allocation from the Government;
e City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement from the Government;

e developer contributions; and

e other external funding opportunities.

The partnership is acutely aware of the need to ensure that the bus network is both
sustainable and stable. This is vitally important so that people and businesses have
confidence that their travel needs will be met into the future.

17
Page 27



PART 2 - EP SCHEME

THE TEES VALLEY ENHANCED PARTNERSHIP SCHEME FOR BUSES IS MADE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 138G(1) OF THE TRANSPORT ACT 2000 BY:

Tees Valley Combined Authority
Section 1 — EP Scheme Content

This document fulfils the statutory requirements for an EP Scheme. In accordance
with statutory requirements in section 138 of the Transport Act 2000, the EP Scheme
document sets out:

Section 2 - Scope of the EP Scheme and commencement date
Section 3 - Obligations on the Local Authorities

Section 4 - Obligations on Bus Operators

Section 5 — Governance Arrangements

The EP Scheme can only be put in place if an associated EP Plan has been made.
Therefore, this document should be considered alongside the associated EP Plan.

The EP Scheme has been jointly developed by the Tees Valley Combined Authority,
which is the Local Transport Authority, the Local Highway Authorities (Darlington
Borough Council, Hartlepool Borough Council, Middlesbrough Council, Redcar &
Cleveland Borough Council and Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council) and those bus
operators that provide local bus services in the EP Scheme area. It sets out the
obligations and requirements on both the Local Transport Authority, the Local
Highway Authorities and operators of local services in order to achieve the priorities
in the associated EP Plan.

Section 2 - Scope of the EP Scheme and Commencement Date
Description of Geographical Coverage

The EP Scheme will support the improvement of all local bus services operating in
the entirety of the Tees Valley Combined Authority area, which includes Darlington
Borough Council, Hartlepool Borough Council, Middlesbrough Council, Redcar &
Cleveland Borough Council and Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council.

There has been engagement with immediate neighbouring authorities during the
preparation of the BSIP and EP, which will continue as the interventions are
implemented.

Map of EP Plan and EP Scheme Areas
The map below identifies the geographical area covered by the EP Scheme.

The area is the same as that covered by the EP Plan.

Page 28



ugn.,l,mf )] e e
= e N P s R
) £ &= = % zes Valley Combined
\Durnam) % = = Authoriy Boundary
&= = = Nori East Combned
‘: R Autonty
\
o T o vonanee
\ .
N | Ta
ook Wiingtan = LH
S_nm hY n
— \ Hartlepdol
=) %
=

=
= Stocktan-On-Tees  Middiesbrolgh .
=@
|

ston.
{174]
Darlington [ 1]

AGS(M

&l

TWCA National Bus Strategy|

Commencement Date

The EP Plan and EP Scheme are made on the 1 April 2022. The Plan will have no
specific end date but is initially intended to cover the five-year period from 2022/23 to
2026/27.

Progress will be reviewed by Tees Valley Combined Authority on a quarterly basis
and publicly accessible reports will be prepared on a routine basis.

Exempted Services

No registered local bus services are considered to be exempt from the scheme. This
situation will be reviewed as additional detail is added to the obligations resulting
from measures and facilities, in order to not create any disproportionate impacts.

19
Page 29



Section 3 - Obligations on the Authorities

Facilities

Tees Valley Combined Authority and the local highway authorities will endeavour to
provide the following Facilities, subject to funding availability and other statutory
processes that the local highway authorities must adhere to e.g. The Local
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996.

INFRASTRUCTURE: TVCA and the local highway authorities will deliver new
infrastructure investment to prioritise bus on core corridors and improve
customer experience, including:

progressing the short-term delivery of improvements on three prioritised
corridors (phase 1);

developing a further programme of improvements on six identified corridors;

progressing the delivery of digital infrastructure, including the Urban Traffic
Management and Control (UTMC) system and digitally enabled information
provision;

making improvements to customer waiting facilities including disabled access,
shelters and information; and

improving integration with rail, cycling and walking to provide high quality
choice across a range of modes and a seamless customer experience.

The phased programme of improvements on the nine core corridors will be delivered

to:

enhance the bus offer by reducing the impact of congestion and journey time
variability on end-to-end bus journey times to make bus a more desirable
mode choice;

improve the punctuality of bus services to employment, education, essential
services, retail and leisure opportunities in the five key urban centres
(Darlington, Middlesbrough, Stockton-on-Tees, Redcar & Hartlepool);

increase the number of public transport interchange facilities across the Tees
Valley to improve integration between bus, rail and active travel; and

improve the bus passenger experience and the level of satisfaction with the
bus network.

The nine corridors, which are listed below, have been subject to detailed bus corridor
assessments against the programme level objectives:

Middlesbrough to Netherfields/Overfields;

Coulby Newham to Middlesbrough;

Redcar to Middlesbrough;

Eaglescliffe, Yarm and Ingleby Barwick to Middlesbrough;

20
Page 30



e Middlesbrough to East Cleveland Hospital;
e Darlington to Durham;

e Darlington to Middlesbrough (via Stockton);
e Branksome to Red Hall (via Darlington); and
¢ Middlesbrough to Hartlepool.

1085000 1065500 BE000 1066500 1087000 1087500
KEY:
— Widdlesbrough to Netneriefds
= Middlesbrough bo Overfiekis
— Coulby Newham to Mddiesbrough
2 e Ridcar fo Middlzsbrough
5 Eaglescliie. Yarm and |ngletsy Barwick to
< Middlesbrough
Durham
g

Hartlepoo|

T |.| 1 | FIRETISAE ‘.—l\-.
] oo o] S B

FOR INFORMAT|ON DNLY

Redcar

\\\II

Middlesbrough Saltturn g

' Stockton

: 7 Thomaby

-
% : \ ‘;‘ ~ - - f v —
Darlington . \\_13139‘9"" o ] TVGA B;SFI:A(;IJ-IPIERSHIF
1 2 - - { TE

SERVI|CE CORR|DOR ROUTES WITH
DRT AREAS

ccurmeeai YA TR L5
18000

T T FFROVED

R
= |1:8,875

R A BTSN e i oo | roes ithsaas | &

The three phase 1 priority corridors that have been selected by TVCA for
advancement to option development stage are: Branksome to Red Hall;
Middlesbrough to Redcar; and Middlesbrough to Hartlepool. The initial
implementation of the first three corridors has been programmed to be delivered
through the existing TVCA Transforming Cities Fund allocation. The remaining six
corridors make up the bus package in the TVCA City Region Sustainable Transport
Settlement (CRSTS) bid.

The corridor improvements include a co-ordinated programme of on highway
infrastructure improvements, digital upgrades (e.g. UTMC System improvements),
bus priority and passenger infrastructure and information upgrades.

Both the fleet decarbonisation and customer experience priorities will initially be
focussed on these priority corridors to maximise the impact of the investment and the
potential for modal shift.

21
Page 31



Bus Lanes

Details of bus lanes and bus priority facilities to be provided and maintained by the
local highway authorities will be added as funding availability is confirmed. This will
include existing facilities that remain unchanged.

Bus Stops

Details of the bus stops and passenger infrastructure to be provided by the local
highway authorities will be added upon completion of the current programme to
define a consistent approach to bus stop infrastructure, and as funding availability is
confirmed.

Adding to or modifying the list of facilities using a bespoke variation

The powers of bespoke variation will be used to add additional commitments at any
point without the need to follow formal variation procedures — although an operator
objection mechanism (not necessarily the existing statutory one) will always be
required.

Measures?

DECARBONISATION: TVCA will support operators in enabling the Tees Valley
to be one of the first regions in the UK to have an entirely zero emission local
bus fleet, including:
e supporting an initial Zero Emission Bus Regional Areas (ZEBRA) Scheme hydrogen
bus trial;
¢ decarbonising the fleet across the nine priority corridors identified in the infrastructure
section; and
o developing a longer-term decarbonisation strategy with a structured and costed

delivery plan.

FARES: TVCA will support operators in enabling simpler fares and targeted
promotions to drive growth, including:

¢ asimplified zonal structure and range of tickets;

¢ targeted discounts on fares to encourage growth in key passenger groups, including
younger travellers and those seeking work;

o off-peak (evening and weekend) fare promotions to encourage modal shift; and

e implementing a consistency across the Tees Valley in the local enhancements to the

English National Concessionary Travel Scheme (ENCTS).

2 Provided under s.138D(2) of the Transport Act 2000

22
Page 32



CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE: TVCA will work with operators to put the needs of
customers at the heart of service delivery and improve information provision
with one brand identity, including:

developing a single upgraded website, which will host fares, timetable, real-time and
mapping information alongside travel planning advice;

developing an overarching Tees Valley transport brand;

developing a suite of products, including maps, at-stop timetables and electronic
information, underpinned by data processes that will ensure they remain up to date
and accurate;

developing an overarching marketing and communications strategy, which will seek
to deliver marketing and promotional activity promoted through various channels,
including social media;

introducing a Tees Valley passenger charter clearly setting out what standards of
service customers can expect, which will be underpinned by an equality impact
assessment;

agreeing timetable change dates to limit service disruption for passengers;
retrofitting audio-visual next stop announcements across all buses in the Tees Valley
fleet; and

measuring satisfaction through regular passenger surveys, and using the results to

inform our ongoing work programme.

NETWORK: TVCA will work collaboratively with operators to deliver a network
focused on core corridors and integration with the Tees Flex on-demand bus
service, including:

establishing a tiered network, including commercial, emerging commercial and the
Tees Flex on-demand bus service, which will require ongoing financial support;
supporting the emerging commercial network in response to changing demand
created through housing and employment growth, to better connect people to
opportunity (including through the proactive engagement of bus operators in major
residential and employment developments); and

continuation and potential expansion of the Tees Flex on-demand bus service.

To standardise the service offer across the Tees Valley, the concept of a tiered
network has been developed based on:

A Core Commercial Network of relatively high frequency corridors, linking main
hubs and intermediate points along the corridor, including rail stations. These
corridors will ideally have a 10-minute headway (by combining and co-ordinating

23
Page 33



frequencies if needed), and no less than every 15 minutes during Monday to
Saturday daytime (07:00 — 18:00), with evening and Sunday frequencies provided as
a reasonable proportion of that service level (at least one third). This level of
frequency starts to build a concept of ‘turn up and go’.

A Lower Frequency Commercial Network of corridors between main points where
the core frequencies cannot be sustained. These should still be attractive, operating
on ‘clockface’ headways of every 20 or 30 minutes to ensure timetables are easy to
follow. Where possible, uneven headways should be avoided as they are harder to
communicate to passengers.

A Critical Links Commercial Network of lower frequency services between main
centres where services of every 60 minutes or less are provided to ensure essential
services or employment opportunities can be reached. These may be tailored to
specific demand times (e.g. shift starts).

An Emerging Commercial Network in response to changing travel demand that will
require financial support as passengers grow.

A Tees Flex On-Demand Network that feeds into the main hub to hub connections
at key interchange points. The service operates in areas that were previously
commercially unviable and there is therefore a need for ongoing financial support.

The principle of core corridors with key interchange hubs will be used to increase
frequencies and accessibility across the network. This can be achieved by
consolidating services over common sections and curtailing those which may have a
marginal benefit. Whilst this may require some passengers to interchange between
services, the higher frequencies and introduction of fully co-ordinated ticketing could
make end to end journeys faster overall.

Tees Flex On-Demand
Network

Emerging
Commercial Network

Critical Links
Commercial Network

Lower Frequency
Commercial Network

Core
Commercial
Network

24
Page 34



Road and Street Works Permitting

The local highway authorities have implemented permit schemes via Part 3 of the
Traffic Management Act 2004 and the Traffic Management Permit Scheme
(England) Regulations 2007. The schemes require a works promoter, which will be a
utility company, transport authority or highway authority, to apply for a permit to
occupy the road.

The permit authority, on considering the application, can request certain conditions
are applied to any permit that it grants. This will enable the permit authority to
coordinate road works so that disruption and congestion are minimised. The
schemes provide the opportunity to carefully consider the impact of roadworks on
bus services.

The local highway authorities will work to ensure that the permit schemes are aligned
to the priorities in the Enhanced Partnership.

Section 4 - Obligations on Local Bus Operators?

Vehicle standards [to be agreed before implementation, but examples of
standards may include]:

e Emissions standards, including potential milestones for standards to be met
(e.g. Euro IV, moving to X% Euro VI by 202x, or Y% zero emission buses by
202x — Detail to be defined).

e Automatic engine cut off to prevent idling at bus stops longer than necessary
to reduce roadside emissions.

e CCTV installed for safety and security. This will provide images inside the
vehicle for safety and security and also facing forwards from the vehicle to
help identify traffic issues.

e Free Wi-Fi, subject to emerging customer research on actual use and
demand.

e Automatic Vehicle Location equipment installed that will feed into the new real
time information system.

e USB or alternative small device charging available.

¢ Audio visual announcements:

o Next stop audio and visual announcements on both decks.

e Option to pay for tickets through contactless ticketing.

3 Under s.138C of the Transport Act 2000

25
Page 35



Network Stability Protocol

In order to achieve greater network stability and improve confidence in the level of
information provided, service changes will only be allowed on an agreed series of
four service change dates each year. These dates will be agreed according to the
forthcoming year’s calendar during the final quarter of the preceding year. The dates
will be chosen with a view to a relatively even spacing throughout the year and to
avoid peak preparatory workloads during the main holiday periods.

Each date will apply across the Tees Valley and services may be amended on any of
the dates, subject to a maximum of two changes per service in a rolling twelve-
month period.

Changes may also be made on other dates if necessary for seasonal services,
commercial, competitive or operational response relating to the commercial network
or connections with other public transport services, but the notification requirements
(below) must still be adhered to if at all possible.

Notification Requirements*

Weeks Prior to

Implementation Requirement

11 Notification of intended service changes

Provide advance copies of registrations for comment (timely
10 suggestions or amendments to be considered subject to
commercial or operational necessity)

6 Registration submission deadline

Ticketing
Bus operators in the Tees Valley will work with TVCA to implement:

e a simplified zonal structure and range of tickets;

e targeted discounts on fares to encourage growth in key passenger groups,
including younger travellers and those seeking work;

o oOff-peak (evening and weekend) fare promotions to encourage modal shift;
and

e a consistency across the Tees Valley in the local enhancements to the

English National Concessionary Travel Scheme (ENCTS).

4 Outside of the Coronavirus emergency registration process

26
Page 36



Section 5 — Governance Arrangements
EP Forum

The formal governance arrangements are defined through a bus partnership steering
group (“Forum)” whose membership comprises:

o Tees Valley Combined Authority;

o Major Bus Operators;

¢ Confederation of Passenger Transport (CPT); and
e Local Authorities.

The Forum is supported in its decision making by themed working groups, all of
which take forward the more detailed workstreams. There will be oversight of the
Enhanced Partnership from the TVCA Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny Committee and
Transport Committee. Future content and arrangements for the variation and
revocation of the EP Plan and EP Scheme will be considered by the Forum.

The structure of this governance is illustrated in the diagram below.

Higher Level Gavernance

Transport Committee
Serutiny Committee

Task & Finish Groups

« Membership

— Nominated by Steering

Group attendees and Local Steering Group

Authorities STEERING GROUP
(Monthly) + Chair
¢ Freauisncy 5 2 — Senior LA Officer
Purpose: To provide strategic
— Asrequired 2
oversight of the partnership and .
K dath dacisl + Membership
. Purpose make recommendations to decision
makers = TVCA, Local Authorities,
~ To define and oversee the Bus Operators, CPT

delivery of specific related
tasks in support of the BSIP
formaticn and implementation

Customer Experience Network & Service Delivery Infrastructure
Task & Finish Group T: ish Group Task & Finish Group

Ticketing Fir

Einish Group Task & Finish Group

Fleet Decarbeonisation
Task & Finish Group

Review of EP Scheme

Once the EP Scheme is made, a review will be initiated by TVCA and presented to
the EP Forum every six months following publication of data on progress towards
targets, as required by the BSIP. This will ensure any necessary action is taken to
deliver the targets set out in the BSIP.

27
Page 37



The EP Forum can also decide to review specific elements of the scheme on an ad-
hoc basis. EP Forum members should contact TVCA using the following email
address [transport@teesvalley-ca.gov.uk] explaining what the issue is and its
urgency. TVCA will then decide whether to table at the next scheduled meeting or
make arrangements for all or the necessary EP Forum members to gather more
quickly.

Bespoke Arrangements for Varying or Revoking the Enhanced Partnership
Scheme

Under powers at section 138E of the Transport Act 2000, Enhanced Partnership
Scheme Variations will be subject to the bespoke voting mechanism set out in this
section.

Changes to or new flexibility provisions added to the EP Scheme under s.138E of
the Transport Act 2000 shall only be included in the EP scheme if they satisfy the
statutory objection mechanism as set out in The Enhanced Partnership Plans and
Schemes (Objections) Regulations 2018.

For other variations, not anticipated by the scheme, the process under section
138(K)(L) and (M) of the Transport Act 2000 will be followed.

Proposer of a bespoke variation

Consideration will be given to potential EP Scheme variations highlighted by one of
the organisations represented on the EP Forum. The proposer of a variation should
demonstrate how this might contribute to achieving the objectives set out in the
BSIP, EP Plan and current local transport policies. Such requests should be in
writing and submitted to transport@teesvalley-ca.gov.uk. TVCA will forward all
requests onto all EP Forum members within 5 working days.

Decision-making process and bespoke objection mechanism

On receipt of a request for a variation under this section, TVCA will reconvene the
EP Forum, giving at least 14 days’ notice for the meeting, to consider the proposed
variation. If the proposed variation is agreed by all bus operator(s) affected by the
change, TVCA, and any affected Local Authority, then TVCA will make the EP
Scheme variation within seven working days and publish the revised EP Scheme on
its website. An affected operator is considered to be one where at least one of their
currently registered local bus services would use the proposed facility or be impacted
by the proposed measure.

EP Forum members who are absent or not expressing a view at the meeting (either
in person or in writing®) will be deemed to be abstaining from the decision.

TVCA, the Local Authority or an operator of local bus services may put forward
specific proposals for introducing bus priority measures on an individual section of
defined highway or bus corridor.

5 This could also include proxy voting, if the operators concerned provide written confirmation to
TVCA.

28
Page 38



Those operating local services on that corridor may also put forward a package of
improvements to local bus services that they agree to introduce if the bus priority
measures are delivered.

If TVCA agrees and the operators of local services on that corridor confirm in writing
to TVCA their acceptance of these arrangements, TVCA will vary the scheme using
these bespoke arrangements. The obligations on bus operators will come into force
70 days after the agreed package of bus priority measures has been implemented by
the LTA.

Revocation of an EP Scheme

If TVCA or another member of the EP Forum believes it is necessary to revoke the
EP Scheme, the EP Forum will be reconvened. If the decision is taken to revoke the
EP Scheme it will follow the legislative procedures for revocation or use bespoke
arrangements as set out earlier in this section.

TVCA would give notice of a proposal to revoke an enhanced partnership plan or
scheme in such manner as they consider appropriate for bringing it to the attention of
persons in their area or combined area. After giving notice under subsection (4), the
authority or authorities will consult:

a. operators of qualifying local services;
b. the Competition and Markets Authority; and
c. such other persons as the authority or authorities think fit.

If, after consulting those persons, TVCA wish to revoke the plan or scheme, they
must give notice of their intention to revoke the plan or scheme to persons who were
operators of qualifying local services at the qualifying time.

The notice under subsection (6) must:

a) state the date on which the plan or scheme is to be revoked,

b) state the authority's or authorities' reasons for revoking the plan or scheme,

c) state the effect of subsection (8), and

d) specify the period within which persons who are operators of qualifying local
services at the qualifying time may object to the revocation.

TVCA may not revoke the plan or scheme if a sufficient number of the persons who
were operators of qualifying local services at the qualifying time object to the
revocation of the plan or (as the case may be) the scheme.

If at any point in the future, any area covered by this EP Scheme is included in a bus
franchising scheme, the relevant requirements set out in this EP Scheme document
will cease to apply to areas covered by the franchising scheme, in line with the
arrangements set out in the franchising scheme.®

6 Section 123H(6)-(8) of the Transport Act 2000

29
Page 39



Data sharing

There may be personal data gathered as part of any subsequent user surveys
completed or commercially confidential data shared between operators and TVCA
(or their appointed consultants). There is a specific requirement to demonstrate a
robust process for the Partnership to evaluate the impact of the EP Plan and
Scheme (and the BSIP) so it is likely this would include user surveys.

Any personal data gathered would be aggregated and anonymised during the
analysis process by the lead authority to ensure that no personal data was shared
with the Partnership Board, or any third party.

Any commercially confidential data will be protected by a Non-Disclosure or Data
Sharing Agreement and when presented will be aggregated, anonymised and
indexed to ensure commercial confidentiality is retained. The owner of the data
would be consulted to ensure this had been completed to a satisfactory level before
it is presented.

30
Page 40



Annex A

Schedule of facilities

To be added once funding availability is known

31
Page 41



Annex B

Schedule of Measures

To be added once funding availability is known

END OF DOCUMENT

32
Page 42



	Agenda
	1 Tees Valley Combined Authority Enhanced Bus Partnership Plan and Scheme
	TVCA EP Plan and Scheme Final Draft


